CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION

MICHAEL K. SKINNER

The Pew Scholars Program in the Biomedical Sciences

Transcript of an Interview Conducted by

Arnold Thackray and Richard Sawyer

at

Coral Gables, Florida

on

4 March 1990

(With Subsequent Corrections and Additions)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

This oral history is part of a series supported by a grant from the Pew Charitable Trusts based on the Pew Scholars Program in the Biomedical Sciences. This collection is an important resource for the history of biomedicine, recording the life and careers of young, distinguished biomedical scientists and of Pew Biomedical Scholar Advisory Committee members.



This interview has been designated as Free Access.

One may view, quote from, cite, or reproduce the oral history with the permission of CHF.

Please note: Users citing this interview for purposes of publication are obliged under the terms of the Chemical Heritage Foundation Oral History Program to credit CHF using the format below:

Michael K. Skinner, interview by Arnold Thackray and Richard Sawyer at Coral Gables, Florida, 4 March 1990 (Philadelphia: Chemical Heritage Foundation, Oral History Transcript **# 0751**).



Chemical Heritage Foundation Center for Oral History 315 Chestnut Street Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106



The Chemical Heritage Foundation (CHF) serves the community of the chemical and molecular sciences, and the wider public, by treasuring the past, educating the present, and inspiring the future. CHF maintains a world-class collection of materials that document the history and heritage of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries; encourages research in CHF collections; and carries out a program of outreach and interpretation in order to advance an understanding of the role of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries in shaping society.

THE BECKMAN CENTER FOR THE HISTORY OF CHEMISTRY

Oral History Program

RELEASE FORM

This document contains my understanding and agreement with the Center for History of Chemistry with respect to my participation in a tape-recorded interview conducted by Arnold Thackray and Richard Sawyer on <u>4 March 1990</u>. I have read the transcript supplied by the Center and returned it with **cn** 4 March 1990 my corrections and emendations.

- The tapes and corrected transcript (collectively called the 1. "Work") will be maintained by the Center and made available in accordance with general policies for research and other scholarly purposes.
- I hereby grant, assign, and transfer to the Center all right, 2. title, and interest in the Work, including the literary rights and the copyright, except that I shall retain the right to copy, use and publish the Work in part or in full until my death.
- The manuscript may be read and the tape(s) heard by scholars з. approved by the Center subject to the restrictions listed below. The scholar pledges not to quote from, cite, or reproduce by any means this material except with the written permission of the Center.
- I wish to place the following conditions that I have checked 4. below upon the use of this interview. I understand that the Center will enforce my wishes until the time of my death, when any restrictions will be removed.
 - \nearrow No restrictions for access. a.
 - b. My permission required to quote, cite, or reproduce.
 - c. ____ My permission required for access to the entire document and all tapes.

This constitutes our entire and complete understanding.

(Signature) Michael K. Skinner

(Date) 11/26/50

(Revised 24 February 1988)

MICHAEL K. SKINNER

1956	Born in Redmond, Oregon on May 12
	Education
1979	BA, Chemistry, Reed College
1982	PhD, Biochemistry, Washington State University
	Professional Experience
	University of Toronto, Toronto, Ontario, Canada
1982-1984	Post-Doctorate, Reproductive Biology/Biochemistry
1984-Present	Vanderbilt University, Nashville, Tennessee
	Assistant Professor, Pharmacology

Honors

1981-1982	Holland Graduate Fellow
1982-1984	Canadian MRC Postdoctoral Fellow
1984	Invited Symposium Speaker at the 7 th International Congress of
	Endocrinology
1986	Pew Scholars in the Biomedical Sciences Award

ABSTRACT

Michael K. Skinner grew up in Pendleton, Oregon, the oldest of five boys. His father was an insurance salesman and his mother a housewife. Although he did well in school he was really interested in sports, and wrestled in high school. He wrote a paper on plant biochemistry and decided to be a scientist, knowing even then that he would need a PhD.

Skinner won a wrestling scholarship to Warner Pacific College, but he quit wrestling to have time for studying. His chemistry teacher, William Davis, persuaded Skinner to transfer to Reed College, where he did well. He also shifted his interest from radiation chemistry to biochemistry. During this time, in addition to writing fifteen papers, he married his high-school sweetheart and became a father.

Wanting to be in the lab of a young, enthusiastic professor, Skinner went to Michael Griswold's lab at Washington State University, where he learned biochemistry techniques and picked up molecular biology. He began his life's work in reproductive biology, working in proteins. Finishing his PhD in three years, he continued his focused approach in Irving Fritz's lab at C.H. Best Institute at University of Toronto, learning a great deal of physiology. Skinner worked on Sertoli cells, and he found a mesenchymal conductor in testis. During his postdoc he had seven to ten publications. Skinner was recruited to Vanderbilt University's large, excellent reproductive unit by Marie-Claire Orgebin-Crist. There he is able to continue his research in both testis and ovary.

Skinner discusses funding, one of his pet peeves, the daily demands of running a lab, and the competition with other labs. He believes that the biggest question in science, particularly in his field, is overpopulation. He says that other big questions include gene therapy, immunity, and funding protocols. He expects still to be at the bench in ten years, possibly with industry funding. His wife is a housewife and did not attend college. He keeps his work.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Early Years Family background. Father insurance salesman, mother housewife. Oldest of five boys. Grew up in Oregon. Mostly interested in athletics in school. Paper on plant biochemistry sparked interest to be scientist. Knew he would need PhD. Good high- school chemistry teacher.	1
College Years Wrestling scholarship to Warner Pacific College. Quit wrestling for academics. Met William C. Davis; became his assistant. Radiochemistry course at Reed College. Married high-school girlfriend. Wins Steinbeck Undergraduate Scholarship. Helps Davis teach at small colleges. Demanding school. Influence of Larry Church and William Block. Interest changes from radiation chemistry to biochemistry.	3
Graduate School Years Works with Michael Griswold at Washington State University. Learns biochemistry techniques and picks up molecular biology. Works mostly in protein isolation and purification. Discovers reproductive biology. PhD in three years.	5
Postdoctoral Work Irving Fritz's lab at C.H. Best Institute at University of Toronto to work in reproductive biology and physiology. Skinner's college minor theology; enjoys philosophy. Science provides opportunity to contribute to society, requires curiosity. Family's religion. Funding. Sertoli cells; proteins involved in cell-cell communication. Mesenchymal and epithelial cells in testis his focus. Fifteen graduate publications; eighty hours per week in lab. Learns physiology of reproduction from Fritz. Compares European and American science. Seven to ten publications in Fritz's lab. Number of papers important for National Institutes of Health funding.	7
Vanderbilt University Marie-Claire Orgebin-Crist and Vanderbilt University. Startup package. Lab composition and size; pressure to grow. Minimal teaching duties and committee work. Lab environment and personalities. Jenny Darrington and female reproductive physiology. Competition. Pew Scholars in the Biomedical Sciences award.	16

General Thoughts "Big questions" in science and in the field. In ten years hopes still to be doing basic research. Family life and "science" life.

INDEX

A

acquired immune deficiency syndrome, 29, 30 ACS. *See* American Chemical Society AIDS. *See* acquired immune deficiency syndrome Alaska, 7, 33 American Association for the Advancement of Science, 17 American Chemical Society, 24 Andrew W. Mellon Foundation, 23

B

Best Institute, 14, 15 Bethesda, Maryland, 30 Block, William, 12

С

Canada, 17, 20 collaboration, 28 competition, 24, 27, 28

D

Darrington, Jenny, 27 Davis, William Conan, 9, 10, 11

F

Fritz, Irving B., 14, 18, 19, 20, 27

G

Georgetown University, 23 Gordon Research Conference, 19 grant/funding, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26, 27, 28, 30 Griswold, Michael D., 12, 14, 19, 22, 33

I

Idaho, 7

K

Krout, James, 8

L

Lewis and Clark College, 10

Μ

Medical Research Council, 17 mesenchymal cell, 18

Ν

Nashville, Tennessee, 26 National Institutes of Health, 21, 23, 24, 27, 30, 31, 32 Nietzsche, Friedrich, 17 NIH. *See* National Institutes of Health

0

Oregon, 7, 32 Oregon Health Sciences University, 23 Oregon National Primate Research Center, 23 Orgebin-Crist, Marie-Claire, 22

Р

Pendleton, Oregon, 7, 8, 9
Pew Scholars Program in the Biomedical Sciences, 28, 29
Portland, Oregon, 7, 8, 9, 10, 23
publish/publication, 13, 14, 17, 19, 21, 22

R

Redmond, Oregon, 7, 8 Reed College, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 23 religion, 14, 15, 16, 17 Rockefeller University, 19

S

Sertoli cell, 18 Skinner, Hugh Kirtland (father), 7 Skinner, Tanya Valerie Wolf (mother), 7 Steinbeck Undergraduate Scholarship, 10

Т

Tennessee, 23 Toronto, Ontario, Canada, 14, 17, 19, 20, 22, 27

U

United States Department of Agriculture, 24 United States of America, 20, 30 University of California, Davis, 19 University of Toronto, 14

V

Vanderbilt University, 22, 23, 25, 26, 27, 28, 32

W

Warner Pacific College, 9 Washington, 7 Washington State University, 11, 12, 13, 19, 23

Z

Zygon, 17